Guide to the Arthur Judson Brown Papers

RG₂



Compiled by Lynn Buckley Aber

1974

409 Prospect Street
New Haven, CT 06511
(203) 432-5301
divinity.library@yale.edu
http://web.library.yale.edu/divinity/special-collections

Table of Contents

Collection Overview	3
Requesting Instructions	3
Administrative Information	
Conditions Governing Access	
Preferred Citation	
Processing Information	
Biographical / Historical	4
Scope and Contents	6
Arrangement	10
Collection Contents	11
Series I: Correspondence, 1864-1967	11
Correspondence: General	
Correspondence: Family	
Correspondence Re: Publications	
Correspondence Re: Missions	
Correspondence Re: Anniversaries	18
Correspondence Re: Retirement	
Series II: Diaries and enclosures, 1901-1902, 1909	23
Series III: Writings, 1890-1962	
Series IV: Personal items and memorabilia, 1894-1962	
Series V: Printed material, 1884-1963	
Series VI: Restricted Circulation and Oversize Material	
Restricted circulation	34
Oversize Material	
Selected Search Terms	36

Collection Overview

REPOSITORY: Yale Divinity Library

409 Prospect Street New Haven, CT 06511 (203) 432-5301

divinity.library@yale.edu

http://web.library.yale.edu/divinity/special-collections

CALL NUMBER: RG 2

CREATOR: Brown, Arthur Judson, 1856-1963

TITLE: Arthur Judson Brown papers

DATES: 1864-1969

PHYSICAL DESCRIPTION: 9.5 linear feet (26 boxes)

LANGUAGE: English

SUMMARY: The bulk of the papers relate to Brown's activities in the Presbyterian Church,

the Presbyterian Board of Foreign Missions, and with the ecumenical and world missionary movements. Of special interest are Brown's travel diaries of tours of China and the Far East, 1901-1902 and 1909. Arthur Judson Brown was a Presbyterian clergyman, author and pioneer in the ecumenical and world missionary movements of the 20th century. The positions he held included administrative secretary of the Presbyterian Board of Foreign Missions (1895-1929), charter trustee of the Church Peace Union (1914), organizer of several World War I relief committees, editor of *Missionary Review of the World* (1930), vice-president of the International World

Alliance of Presbyterian and Reformed Churches (1933-1937).

ONLINE FINDING AID: To cite or bookmark this finding aid, please use the following link: https://

hdl.handle.net/10079/fa/divinity.002

Requesting Instructions

To request items from this collection for use on site, please use the request links in the HTML version of this finding aid, available at https://hdl.handle.net/10079/fa/divinity.002.

Key to the container abbreviations used in the PDF finding aid:

b. box

f. folder

Administrative Information

Conditions Governing Access

The materials are open for research. In three series-- Correspondence, Writings, and Printed Material--electrostatic copies have been inserted where necessary. The original copies of all this material are

located at the end of the Arthur Judson Brown Papers labelled "Restricted Circulation". Researchers should use the copies in lieu of the originals.

Preferred Citation

Arthur Judson Brown Papers (RG 2), Special Collections, Yale Divinity Library.

Processing Information

Place names were modernized in the description, with the name originally used in the collection material or in an older version of the finding aid in parenthesis: e.g. "Beijing (Peking)" or "Benin (Dahomey)".

Biographical / Historical

Date	Event
1856:	o Born at Holliston, Massachusetts
1864:	$_{\odot}$ Father, Edwin T. Brown, dies in the Civil War; the family moves to Wisconsin
1880:	o A.B., Wabash College
1883:	$_{\odot}$ Graduates from Lane Theological Seminary, Cincinnati, Ohio; ordination; marries Jennie Elizabeth Thomas
1884:	o Minister at the First Presbyterian Church, Ripon, Wisconsin
1884-1888:	O Minister at the First Presbyterian Church, Oak Park, Illinois
1885-1887:	○ Literary Editor of <i>The Interior</i> , Chicago
1886:	o A.M., Wabash College
1887:	 Moderator of the Synod of Chicago
1888-1895:	o Minister at the First Presbyterian Church, Portland, Oregon
1890:	$_{\odot}$ Chairman of the Portland City Board of Charities; drafts law organizing Oregon's first State Board of Charities and Corrections
1891:	○ Awarded D.D., Lake Forest College
1893:	 Moderator of the Synod of Oregon
1895-1929:	$_{\odot}$ Serves as Administrative Secretary, later General Secretary of the Presbyterian Board of Foreign Missions.
1896:	o First attends the Foreign Mission Conference of North America; later becomes first Chairman of the Committee of Reference and Counsel (16 years), and Chairman of the Emergency Committee on Support of Missionary Societies
1898-1900:	o Ecumenical Missionary Conference, New Yorkmember Executive Committee; ChairmanHospitality Committee 1901-1902: world trip to Asian missions
1909:	○ World trip

Date	Event
1910:	 World Missionary Conference, Edinburgh, Scotlandmember Executive Committee; Chairman, American Section; member of Continuation Committee for 16 years.
1910:	o Commission of the Federal Council of Churches on Relief for Protestant Churches in France and Belgium-Chairman; resumes following World War I
1913:	o Awarded D.D., Yale University
1914:	o British and Foreign Bible SocietyHonorary Foreign Member
1914-1963:	o Council on Religion and International Affairs (formerly The Church Peace Union) Charter Trustee; member Executive and Finance Committees; treasurer since 1936
1914:	o World Alliance for Promoting International Friendship Through Religion-member Executive Committee
1914-1937:	o Peking Union Medical College, Chinatrustee; member Executive Committee; post 1937member Advisory Committee
1915:	○ Near East Relieftrustee
1915-1918:	o Moral Aims of World War Imember Executive Committee
1915-1919:	o National Committee on Relief of Children in Belgiummember Organizing and Executive Committees
1915-1963:	o Hall of Fame for Great Americanselector
1916:	o Awarded LL.D., James Millikin University, Carroll College, Maryville College, Missouri Valley College
1917:	o Foreign Missions Conference of North AmericaChairman
1917:	o Awarded LL.D., Wabash College
1918-1940:	o Hungary-American SocietyChairman of Executive Committee, Vice President; 1920- Chairman of Deputation to Hungary
1919:	$_{\odot}$ Committee on Relief for Protestant Churches in Devastated Regions in Europe in World War I
1920-1937:	o American Committee on Religious Rights and MinoritiesChairman; 1937- Honorary Chairman
1920:	o Life and Work Movementmember of delegation sent by Federal Council of Churches of U.S. for its delegation 1920: Greek DecorationOfficer of the Royal Order of George I
1921:	o International Missionary Councilorganizer
1921:	$_{\odot}$ Siamese DecorationCommander of the Most Exalted Order of the White Elephant
1924:	o National Committee on American-Japanese Relationsmember
1925:	o Conference of Reformed Churches holding the Presbyterian System, Cardiff, WalesCommittee member and speaker

Date	Event
1925:	 Universal Christian Conference on Life and Work, Stockholm, Sweden- Joint President; Chairman-American Section; helps establish "Life and Work" headquarters at Geneva in 1928; Chairman-Continuation Committee until 1936
1927:	$_{\odot}$ World Conference on Faith and Order, Lausanne, Switzerlanddelegate
1930:	o Editor the Missionary Review of the World for one year
1931:	$_{\odot}$ Save The Children Federationfirst President; 1931-1936-Honorary President; member Executive Committee
1933-1937:	 International World Alliance of Presbyterian and Reformed ChurchesVice- President: President-American Section
1937:	o Eugene Field Society (National Literary Association)honorary membership
1960:	○ Hall of Fame for Great Americanscitation
1963:	○ Dies at New York City, age 106
Undated activities	 Britain, Canada and Australia (now under World Council of Churches)member Church Committee for Armeniamember Christ for the World Movementmember Committee on Interchange of Speakers between the United States, Great Britain, Canada and Australia (now under World Council of Churches)member Committee of Reception to Viscount Allenbymember Associated Boards for Christian Colleges in Chinamember Boys' Townhonorary member Cheeloo University, ChinaPresident American Board of Governors Chosen Christian College, Koreatrustee College, Irantrustee American Committee for Armenian and Syrian Reliefmember American-Palestine Committeemember Asiatic Institutemember Executive Committee Japanese-Christian Society, New Yorkmember Advisory Committee World Alliance Committee on Relations Between the United States and Canadamember Golden Rule Foundationmember Advisory Committee Phi Gamma Deltamember Emergency Committee for Relief of Refugees in GreeceChairman National Council of World Fellowship of Faithsmember Conference on Religion and Support of United Nationsmember Executive Committee Committee Committee on Church and Welfare Recoverymember National Civic Federation of Immigration Departmentmember Executive Committee League to Enforce Peacemember Executive Committee; Speakers' Commission League of Nations Non-Partisan AssociationHonorary Vice-President

Scope and Contents

Although the papers span the years 1884-1863, the bulk of the material concerns the years 1895-1929, the dates of Dr. Brown's career with the Presbyterian Board of Foreign Missions. It should be noted, however, that the material represents the personal papers of the clergyman, not any archival records of the Board.

The papers of this mission executive document many developments in church and social history, including the ecumenical movement, of which he was a pioneer.

Correspondence, the first and largest series in the Papers, reflects the long life and career of Dr. Brown. Although there are some letters written by him, most of the material consists of correspondence he received. A wide variety of material is represented in the eight respective sections of this series:

Correspondence: General Correspondence: Family

Correspondence Re: Publications Correspondence Re: Missions Correspondence Re: Anniversaries Correspondence Re: Birthdays Correspondence Re: Retirement

Correspondence Re: Illness and Sympathy

The most extensive section of this series, Correspondence: General, contains professional, organizational, and personal material dating from the late nineteenth century to the 1960s. The correspondence of many prominent religious, political, and social leaders is included in this section. Because of his role in the Ecumenical Movement, Dr. Brown communicated with Catholic, Jewish, and Orthodox leaders, in addition to such influential Protestant clergymen as Henry Sloane Coffin, Nathan Soderblom, and John R. Mott. Often termed a "missionary statesman" himself, Brown received letters from five American Presidents and various other government officials. Booker T. Washington, John D. Rockefeller, Jr., and John Wanamaker were among his famous American correspondents. In addition, members of European and Asian royalty, including Chinese commoner-turned-emperor, Yuan Shih-ktai, were in communication with Dr. Brown.

Correspondence: Family, the brief second section of the series, contains letters written and received by four generations of Browns. A1though not extensive, the material spans over one hundred years. The earliest letter, written by Abraham Brown to Elizabeth Marsh Brown on September 5, 1864, expresses sympathy at the death of Edwin T. Brown in the Civil War. Arthur Judson Brown's message to his brother Elliott, dated "Feb. 4th, 1895" is also of interest for it notes the former's astonishment at being "unanimously elected corresponding secretary Board Foreign Missions" and asks the latter's advice in the matter. Most of the correspondence of Mrs. Jennie Brown concerns a luncheon for Swedish Crown Princess Louise, which Mrs. Brown hostessed on June 5, 1926.

Correspondence Re: Publications contains original letters and typed extracts regarding any work of Dr. Brown's which appeared in printed form. Letters of thanks and commendation comprise the bulk of this section, although business letters also appear. Supplemented by the "Book Review" and "Re: Publications" sections of the Printed Material series, this section forms a chronological guide to the clergyman's literary career.

The fourth section of the series, Correspondence Re: Missions. houses originals, copies, and extracts of Arthur Judson Brown's correspondence with foreign missionaries, Christian nationals, and specific missions. Most of the material deals with the Near and Far East, particularly China. Some foreign language material and translations are included.

Correspondence Re: Anniversaries is composed of congratulatory messages pertaining to three major occasions: Brown's twenty-fifth year as Secretary of the Board of Foreign Missions (1920), fiftieth wedding anniversary (1933), and sixtieth wedding anniversary (1943). One letter, dated 1946, notes the fiftieth anniversary of Brown's service for the Board. The bulk of the material in this section regards Brown's professional anniversary. The most prominent well-wishers include clergymen Henry Sloane Coffin, John R. Mott, and publisher Fleming H. Revell.

Correspondence Re: Birthdays contains greetings sent to Dr. Brown from his seventieth celebration to his one hundred and sixth. The amount of correspondence for each occasion varies greatly: a single message for the eighty-sixth birthday, many for the centennial. A bound volume of letters presented to Dr. Brown from "The Church Peace Union" and the "World Alliance for International Friendship through Religion," is included.

Correspondence Re: Retirement is comprised of letters, copies, extracts, and a telegram regarding Dr. Brown's July 1929 retirement from the Board of Foreign Missions following thirty-four years of service. This section includes a bound volume of letters from members of the Chosen, Korea, Mission, entitled A Book of Remembrances.

Correspondence Re: Illness and Sympathy consists of greetings Dr. Brown received while hospitalized in 1922 and 1941; and expressions of condolence sent to the Brown family upon the deaths of Arthur Judson Brown (1963), Arthur Judson Brown, Jr. (1959), Elliott Wilbur Brown (1941), and Jennie Thomas Brown (1945). Dr. Brown received the condolences regarding the deaths of his son, brother, and wife; while correspondence regarding his own death is addressed principally to his daughter, Eleanor.

Diaries and Enclosures, the second series in the Arthur Judson Brown Papers, contains the clergyman's accounts of his 1901-1902 Asian tour, 1909 world tour, and the material found inside these volumes. Prompted by the Boxer Rebellion, Dr. and Mrs. Brown began a tour of Asia as representatives of the Board of Foreign Missions in February 1901. The clergyman recorded seventeen volumes entitled "Diary of Arthur J. Brown on Tour of Asia" during the fifteen month trip. His daily entries provide valuable accounts of the Near and Far East at the beginning of the twentieth century. The contents of each volume vary greatly, but generally include descriptions of professional conferences and meetings, visits to hospitals, schools, and churches, personal impressions, and travel adventures. Conflicts between Protestant and Roman Catholic missionary interests are mentioned frequently.

"Book VI" of the 1901-1902 Diary, written from Pao-ting-fu and Peking (Beijing) in the aftermath of the Boxers, is perhaps the most significant of the seventeen volumes. Dr. Brown's moving experiences at the Pao-ting-fu mission are recorded in the first pages of the volume. Reference to Yuan Shih-kai's troops, the Boxer ("Allied Villagers") takeover of a city thirty miles to the south, and the reconstruction of the missionary compound are also of note.

Topics included in Dr. Brown's Beijing accounts are the Boxer Rebellion, the subsequent indemnity question, and the suicides of Chinese women in connection with the march of foreign troops. A July 16, 1901 entry records Brown's interview with Sir Robert Hart, Inspector General of Imperial Maritime Customs. While in the capitol, he also met missionaries of different Protestant denominations and called on the Roman Catholic Bishop--indications of his ecumenical spirit.

The material enclosed in the seventeen volume diary supplements Dr. Brown's writings. Newspaper articles, receipts, notes, pamphlets, and a menu are among the items which relate directly to the entries. Four maps of Shandong (Shantung) Province, then governed by Yuan Shih-kai, illustrate a route suggested by F.H. Chalfant, the locations of Protestant missions in the province, "Mail Routes of Am. Pres. Miss. Service", and "Part of Shantung Showing F.H., Chalfant's Itineries 1897."

During this five month world trip begun in July 1909, the clergyman recorded five volumes entitled "Journal of Arthur J. Brown World Tour 1909". The clergyman's writings and activities during the second tour are similar to those of his 1901-1902 trip, generally recording professional conferences and meetings, visits to missions and institutions, personal reflections, and travel descriptions. More specific passages are also significant: the question of Christian church cooperation in the first two volumes, and reference to the Russo-Japanese War in "Books III and IV." The fourth volume also contains the account of the clergyman's Peking interview with a son of Yuah Shih-kai, who stated that the governor had given him a copy of Brown's New Forces in Old China with advice to read it. The final book deals principally with the Brown's experiences traveling by rail from Harbin, China, to Berlin, Germany. A few enclosures, such as train schedules and calling cards, were contained in the 1909 diary.

Writings, the third series, primarily consists of works by the clergyman in either typed or hand-written form. Although much of the material later appeared in print, the only two printed items in this series are attached to specific writings.

Several typed, hand-written, and mimeographed addresses given by Dr. Brown and others appear in this series. Addresses welcoming him to China and Syria during his 1901-1902 Asian tour, are included. Translations are attached to some of the addresses. Two folders of "Prayers", most written by Dr. Brown, cover the years 1947-1961. Most of the "Poems" were written as birthday tributes to him. His brief essay, "The Death of John R. Mott", was made part of the permanent records of The Church Peace Union. Two

complete manuscripts of Brown's autobiographical Memoirs of a Centenarian, are also included in this series.

Personal Items and Memorabilia, the fourth series, contains a wide variety of material. Genealogical information and family souvenirs, such as a recent copy of the 1791 will of Brown's great-grandfather, are included. The autograph of Horatius Bonor, nineteenth century Scottish hymnist and divine, is included with an explanatory note from Thomas Royall dated 1894. An assortment of invitations, to and from American Presidents, European and Asian royalty, dignitaries and professionals, represents highlights of Dr. Brown's career. A small collection of English and Chinese language calling cards, including that of Yuan Shihkai, appears in this series, as well as letters of introduction to foreign governments from President William McKinley, United States Consul John Fowler, and others.

A section of photographs, mainly composed of snapshots taken during Brown's two trips around the world, is located at the end of Personal Items and Memorabilia. The Chinese scenes of Pao-ting-fu, Peking, and Yuan Shih-kai's troopers, are of special interest. The only photo album in the collection, entitled "Our visit to Budapest July, 1920", was given to Dr. Brown as a souvenir of Hungary. A tintype of Edwin T. Brown in Civil War uniform, and photographs of Brown taken from 1880-1962 are notable. A tape-recording of the clergyman's 105th birthday speech is located at the end of the series.

Printed Material, the final series, houses a wide variety of material. It is divided into six sections:

Magazine and Newspaper Clippings Minutes and Reports Pamphlets Re: Publications Church Bulletins and Newsletters Bound Material

The first section, Magazine and Newspaper Clippings, is also the largest. It contains material dating from 1884 to 1963, either written by or regarding Dr. Brown. This section includes all magazine and newspaper clippings except those regarding Dr. Brown's publications, which are arranged as Printed Material: Re: Publications. A wealth of topics concerning both social and church history, such as the Boxer Rebellion, the 1910 Edinburgh Conference, and the League of Nations, is represented. It is also an excellent source for tracing the development of the clergyman's career, point of view, and various activities.

Clippings from the Great Round World and The Assembly Herald frequently appear. Between 1920-1921, Dr. Brown wrote a column entitled "One Book A Week" for The Christian Work. During 1930 he served as Acting Editor of The Missionary Review of the World. Articles from North American, Asian, and European newspapers are located in this section. Many of Dr. Brown's early sermons can be found with Magazine and Newspaper Clippings, as they were reprinted in various publications. Two folders containing book reviews written by Dr. Brown between 1885-1887 for The Interior, then a leading Presbyterian weekly, appear at the end of the section.

The Minutes and Reports section contains committee reports, annual reports, typed extracts, and other organizational material dating from 1890-1962. Material related to the establishment of an Oregon State Board of Charities and Corrections, the 1900 Ecumenical Conference on Foreign Missions, and "Edinburgh 1910", reflects some of the clergyman's interests.

The Pamphlets section covers a wide range of religious, social, and political topics. The contents are divided into three parts: "Pamphlets: Including Notices" contains pamphlets, leaflets, one page printed announcements, and other material written by or regarding Dr. Brown. Printed form letters, also called "General Letters," are included in this section. Form letters are readily recognizable by their official nature and broad salutations (e.g., from "The Board of Foreign Missions" to "Pastors, Church Officers, and all Friends of Foreign Missions.") "General Letters" addressing specific mission groups are located with Correspondence: Missions.

"Pamphlets: Addresses" contains addresses made by Dr. Brown, usually before professional groups, which were printed in pamphlet form. "The Evangelization of the Great West", dated 1894, is the oldest work; while the one hundredth birthday address is the most recent.

"Pamphlets: Sermons" includes works preached by Dr. Brown in 1891, and 1911, in addition to French, German, and Swedish translations of the sermon "Implications of the Publican's Prayer," delivered at the Stockholm Cathedral during the 1925 Universal Christian Conference on Life and Work.

The section on Publications contains a host of material related to fourteen of Dr. Brown's works. Book reviews from magazines and newspapers, book jackets, and typed extracts are included.

The Church Bulletins and Newsletters section spans the years 1903-1965. Some of the material is from churches in Oak Park, Illinois, and Portland, Oregon, where Dr. Brown held pastorates early in his career.

Bound Material houses the clergyman's personal Bible, with markings and enclosures, "Philip's Authentic Map of Asia" and a "Map of the East."

Arrangement

- I. Correspondence, 1864-1967
- II. Diaries and Enclosures, 1901-1902, 1909
- III. Writings, 1890-1962
- IV. Personal Items and Memorabilia, 1894-1962
- V. Printed Material, 1884-1963
- VI. Restricted Circulation and Oversize

Collection Contents

Series I: Correspondence, 1864-1967

This series is composed of eight sections:

Correspondence: General: This section is arranged alphabetically according to the first letter of the correspondent's surname. Lengthy correspondence or that of particularly prominent persons is filed separately under the writer's full name and located after the general folders for that initial. A "Complete List of General Correspondents" is located in the "A" folder.

Correspondence: Family: The material in this section is arranged chronologically.

Correspondence Re: Publications: This section is arranged chronologically according to first publication date of each work. That is, letters regarding an article written by Arthur J. Brown in 1893 appear first, while those regarding his autobiographical *Memoirs of a Centenarian*, published in 1957, are last. Works published the same year are then arranged alphabetically according to title. The contents of each folder are filed chronologically.

Correspondence Re: Missions: This section is arranged alphabetically by country and chronologically within each folder.

Correspondence Re: Anniversaries: This section is divided into three different parts; 25 years with the Presbyterian Board of Foreign Missions (1920), 50th wedding (1933), 60th wedding (1943). Material for each occasion is arranged alphabetically according to the first letter of the writer's surname.

Correspondence Re: Birthdays: Material in this section is arranged chronologically (e.g., 70th Birthday, 80th Birthday, etc.) The individual greetings for each occasion are filed alphabetically according to writer. Telegrams are integrated with correspondence if less than five were received for one birthday. Numerous telegrams, however, are located in separate folders after correspondence.

Correspondence Re: Retirement: The material in this section is filed alphabetically according to the first letter of the writer's surname.

Correspondence Re: Illness and sympathy: The material concerning Arthur J. Brown's 1922 and 1940 operations appears chronologically, while the contents of each folder are arranged according to the first letter of the writer's surname. The sympathy correspondence is arranged alphabetically according to the name of the deceased. Within each folder material is filed alphabetically according to the first letter of the writer's surname.

Correspondence: General

b. 1, f. 1	A	1906-1907, 1921-1960
b. 1, f. 2	Allen, Horace Newton	1901
b. 1, f. 3	American Committee on Religious Rights and Minorities	1920-1937
b. 1, f. 4	American Council for Promoting International Friendship through the Churches	1925-1926
	Includes German Evangelical Church Federation, Dr. D. Kapler	
b. 1, f. 5	Atkinson, Henry A.	1931,1938,1947
b. 1, f. 6	Atkinson, Marjorie Weber (Mrs. Henry A.)	1959, 1961

b. 1, f. 7	Bangor Seminary - Board of Missionary Preparation See also: Presbyterian Church (United) in the USA	1915-1958
b. 1, f. 8	Boughton - Butler	1901, 1915, 1946-1958
b. 1, f. 9	Balfour, Alexander Hugh Bruce	1910
b. 1, f. 10	Brilioth, Ygnve Torgny	1921,1950, 1950
b. 1, f. 11	Bryan, William Jennings	1910-1920, n.d.
b. 1, f. 12	Bryce, James	1921
b. 1, f. 13	Buttrick, George A.	1953-1954,1959
b. 1, f. 14	Cadman - Christian Science Monitor	1906-1958
b. 1, f. 15	Clark - Curtice	1900-1933, 1957, 1959, n.d.
b. 1, f. 16	Carnegie, Louise W. (Mrs. Andrew)	1925, 1928, 1937-1946
b. 1, f. 17	Chi Alpha Fraternity	1958, 1962
b. 1, f. 18	Chinese Legation	1900, 1903, 1917, 1922
b. 1, f. 19	Cleveland, Grover	1898
L 1 f 20		
b. 1, f. 20	Columbia University Oral History Project, including manuscripts	1956
b. 1, f. 20	Columbia University Oral History Project, including manuscripts Corbin, John C.	1956 1952, 1962-1963
b. 1, f. 21	Corbin, John C. Council on Religion and International Affairs Includes Church Peace Union	1952, 1962-1963 1938, 1947,
b. 1, f. 21 b. 1, f. 22	Corbin, John C. Council on Religion and International Affairs Includes Church Peace Union See also: Henry A. Atkinson	1952, 1962-1963 1938, 1947, 1957-1962
b. 1, f. 21 b. 1, f. 22 b. 1, f. 23	Corbin, John C. Council on Religion and International Affairs Includes Church Peace Union See also: Henry A. Atkinson D	1952, 1962-1963 1938, 1947, 1957-1962 1900-1961
b. 1, f. 21 b. 1, f. 22 b. 1, f. 23 b. 1, f. 24	Corbin, John C. Council on Religion and International Affairs Includes Church Peace Union See also: Henry A. Atkinson D Damrong (Prince)	1952, 1962-1963 1938, 1947, 1957-1962 1900-1961 1902-1929, n.d.
b. 1, f. 21 b. 1, f. 22 b. 1, f. 23 b. 1, f. 24 b. 1, f. 25	Corbin, John C. Council on Religion and International Affairs Includes Church Peace Union See also: Henry A. Atkinson D Damrong (Prince) de Hortley, Nicholas Devawongee, Varopakar	1952, 1962-1963 1938, 1947, 1957-1962 1900-1961 1902-1929, n.d.
b. 1, f. 21 b. 1, f. 22 b. 1, f. 23 b. 1, f. 24 b. 1, f. 25 b. 1, f. 26	Corbin, John C. Council on Religion and International Affairs Includes Church Peace Union See also: Henry A. Atkinson D Damrong (Prince) de Hortley, Nicholas Devawongee, Varopakar See also: Series IV, Box 17, Folder 9	1952, 1962-1963 1938, 1947, 1957-1962 1900-1961 1902-1929, n.d. 1921 1902

b. 1, f. 30	F	1902, 1916, 1953- 1962
b. 1, f. 31	Fairbanks, Charles W.	1913, 1916
b. 1, f. 32	Finley, John H. Includes the <i>New York Times</i>	1926-1937
b. 1, f. 33	Ford, George B.	1955-1961
b. 1, f. 34	Foreign Missions Conference of North America, Committee of Reference and Counsel, including re: Korea Includes: M. Komatsu	1915, 1916
	See also: Elihu Root	
b. 1, f. 35	Fosdick, Harry Emerson	1912, 1938, n.d.
b. 1, f. 36	Foster, John W. See also: Series IV, Box 17, Folder 17 ref. Fowler, John See: Yuan Shih Kai, and	1908-1916
b. 1, f. 37	G	1905–1922, 1958–1962, n.d.
b. 1, f. 38	Gustaf (Prince)	1925, 1927
b. 1, f. 39	Н	1901, 1924-1962
b. 1, f. 40	Hadley, Arthur T.	1907-1913
b. 1, f. 41	Hall of Fame for Great Americans	1915, 1944-1962
b. 1, f. 42	Harrison, Benjamin	1897-1900
b. 1, f. 43	Hart, Robert	1901
b. 1, f. 44	Hay, John See also: Series IV, Box 17, Folder 17	1900, 1904
b. 1, f. 45	Hoover, Herbert See also: American Committee on Religious Rights and Minorities	1920-1921, 1957-1958
b. 1, f. 46	Hughes, Charles Evans See also: American Committee on Religious Rights and Minorities	1921-1924
b. 1, f. 47	Hungarian Legation (Royal)	1922, 1926, 1936, 1938
b. 1, f. 48	I	1911-1912, 1948, n.d.
b. 1, f. 49	J	1921-1936, 1959- 1960, n.d.
b. 1, f. 50	K	1910, 1938-1962
b. 1, f. 51	L	1909-1962

b. 1, f. 52	Lane Seminary	1903
b. 1, f. 53	Layman's National Committee	1956-1957
b. 1, f. 54	League to Enforce Peace	1916
b. 1, f. 55	Lodge, Henry Cabot	1921, 1924
b. 1, f. 56	Louise (Crown Princess)	1938
b. 1, f. 57	Luce, Henry R.	1959
b. 2, f. 58	McConnell - Maryville College	1907-1940, 1951-1952
b. 2, f. 59	Mears - Mount Includes Mount Holyoke College, Mary E. Woolley	1908, 1916-1923, 1954, 1960
b. 2, f. 60	MacKay, John A.	1945-1959
b. 2, f. 61	Mahan, Alfred Thayer	1912, 1914
b. 2, f. 62	A.N. Marquis & Company (including Who's Who, Inc.)	1920, 1948, 1960
b. 2, f. 63	Meletios, Archbishop	1921 - 1922
b. 2, f. 64	Missionary Review of the World	1930
b. 2, f. 65	Morgenthau, Henry	1936-1943
b. 2, f. 66	Mott, John R. See also: Foreign Missions Conference of North America, Committee of Reference and Counsel	1900–1915, 1935, 1951–1953
b. 2, f. 67	N	1906, 1916, 1958, 1961
b. 2, f. 68	0	1907, 1928
b. 2, f. 69	P	1899-1911, 1924-1938, 1950-1962
b. 2, f. 70	First Presbyterian Church - Neenah, Wisconsin, Newburg, Oregon, Oak Park, Illinois, Portland, Oregon	1929-1933, 1953-1961
b. 15 , f. 71	Presbyterian Church (United) in the U.S.A Board of Foreign Missions, Board of Ministerial Relief and Sustenation, Synod of Missouri, Synod of Oregon See also: Roy E. Vale	1909-1928, 1947, 1959, 1962
b. 15, f. 72	R	1913, 1923-1930, 1940-1941, 1952-1960
b. 15, f. 73	Reischauer, Edwin O.	1961
b. 15, f. 74	Re: Ritchie Youth Center, Tallmadge, Ohio	1961

b. 15, f. 75	Rockefeller, John D. Jr.	1928-1929, 1938
b. 15 , f. 76	Roosevelt, Theodore	1900-1907
b. 15 , f. 77	Root, Elihu	1900, 1907, 1913
b. 15, f. 78	Sampson - Smiley	1899, 1910, 1930, 1947–1962, n.d.
b. 15, f. 79	Smith - Swan	1904–1905, 1920–1938, 1953–1962
b. 15, f. 80	Schieffelin, William Jay	1936-1949
b. 15, f. 81	Simons, Walter, and Erna R.	1926, 1929, 1937
b. 15, f. 82	Sockman, Ralph See also: Hall of Fame for Great Americans	1962
b. 15, f. 83	Soderblom, Nathan	1922-1926
b. 15, f. 84	Speer, Robert and Emma B.	1901-1902, 1934-1937, 1947-1948
b. 15, f. 85	Stimson, Henry L.	1906, 1940
b. 2, f. 86	Т	1901, 1916-1931, 1949-1958
b. 2, f. 87	Taft, William H.	1906-1926
b. 2, f. 88	Tuskegee Normal and Industrial Institute Includes Booker T. Washington	1903, 1924
b. 2, f. 89	U	1909, 1961-1962
b. 2, f. 90	U.S. War Department, re: Grave of Edwin T. Brown	1900
b. 2, f. 91	Universal Christian Conference on Life and Work, American Section Continuation Committee, re: speech made by Dr. Brown before Crown Prince Gustaf of Sweden	1926
b. 2, f. 92	V	1899-1902, 1949, 1962
b. 2, f. 93	Vale, Roy E.	1923-1924, 1945-1946, 1957
b. 2, f. 94	Venizelos, E.K.	1919-1922
b. 2, f. 95	Walker - Westminster	1901, 1916-1936, 1961-1962
b. 2, f. 96	Whitehead - Wysham	1900, 1925-1962
b. 2, f. 97	Wabash College	1914-1921, 1946-1961

b. 2, f. 98	Wachtmeister, Axel	1922, 1925
b. 2, f. 99	Wanamaker, John	1907, 1909
b. 2, f. 100	Welsh, Herbert	1952, 1962
b. 2, f. 101	Wheeler, W. Reginald	1924, 1955, 1960, 1960
b. 2, f. 102	Wilson, Woodrow	1903-1920
b. 2, f. 103	Winton, Theodore	1916-1929
b. 2, f. 104	Wise, Stephen See also: American Jewish Congress	1927-1928, 1948
b. 2, f. 105	World Missionary Conference	1910
b. 2, f. 106	Y.M.C.A. of Portland, Oregon, Yale Divinity School	1895, 1922
b. 2, f. 107	Yuan Shih Kai See also: Series IV, Box 17, Folder 17	1901, 1912
b. 2, f. 108	Unidentified correspondence in Chinese and Thai (Siamese) (?)	n.d.
Corr	respondence: Family	
b. 3, f. 109	Abraham Brown to Elizabeth Marsh Brown re: death of Edwin T. Brown	1864
b. 3, f. 110	Arthur J. Brown to Elliott W. Brown re: election as Secretary of Presbyterian Board of Foreign Missions	1895
b. 3 , f. 111	to: Jennie T. Brown (Mrs. Arthur J.)	1901-1925
b. 3, f. 112	to and from: Jennie T. Brown (Mrs. Arthur J.)	1926
b. 3, f. 113	to and from: Arthur J. Brown, Arthur J. Brown, Jr., Eleanor Brown, Jennie T. Brown (Mrs. Arthur J.), Harold Coe Stuart	1927, 1943-1966
b. 3, f. 114	re: the diaries of Arthur J. Brown (one letter, two notes)	1967, n.d.
b. 3 , f. 115	unidentified	n.d.
Corr	respondence Re: Publications	
b. 4, f. 116	"Lessons of Hard Times" Morning Oregonian (1893)	1893
b. 4, f. 117	"Vacation on Mt. Hood" New York Evangelist (1893)	1893
b. 4, f. 118	Report on Visits to Missions in China, Korea, Philippines, Thailand (Siam), and Syria (pamphlets and volume) (1902)	1902 Mar-Jul
b. 4, f. 119	Report on Visits to Missions in China, Korea, Philippines, Thailand (Siam), and Syria (pamphlets and volume) (1902)	1902 Aug-Dec
b. 4, f. 120	Report on Visits to Missions in China, Korea, Philippines, Thailand (Siam), and	1903-1904 1918

Correspondence Re: Publications (continued)

b. 4, f. 121	New Era in the Phillipines (1903)	1903-1905, 1908, 1919, n.d.
b. 4, f. 122	New Forces in Old China (1904)	1904–1907, 1909, n.d.
b. 4, f. 123	"Truth and Falsehoods About Korea Missionaries" (1904)	1904
b. 4, f. 124	The Why and How of Foreign Missions (1906)	1908-1909, 1919-1920, 1922
b. 4, f. 125	The Foreign Missionary (1907)	1907–1909, 1938, 1958–1961, n.d.
b. 4, f. 126	The Nearer and Farther East (1908)	1910, 1913
b. 4, f. 127	Report on a Second Visit to China, Japan, and Korea (1909)	1910-1911
b. 4, f. 128	The Chinese Revolution (1912)	1912
b. 4, f. 129	"The Korean Conspiracy Case" (1912)	1912-1913
b. 4, f. 130	"The American Churches and the European War: A Message from the Church Peace Union" (1915)	1915
b. 4, f. 131	Rising Churches in Non-Christian Lands (1915)	1915
b. 4, f. 132	Unity and Missions (1915)	1915–1916, 1920, 1927, n.d.
b. 4, f. 133	Russia in Transformation (1917)	1917-1918, 1928
b. 4, f. 134	The Mastery of the Far East (1919)	1919-1920, 1924, 1928, 1958
b. 4, f. 135	"Prerequisites of Union" the Christian Work (1923)	1923
b. 4, f. 136	Re: Address to General Assembly, Grand Rapids, Michigan (1924)	1924
b. 4, f. 137	The Expectation of Siam (1925)	1925, 1927, 1936, n.d.
b. 4, f. 138	"Patience with China" New York Times, Newark Evening News	1927 Apr
b. 4, f. 139	Japan in the World of Today (1928)	1928-1929
b. 4, f. 140	"Ourselves and the League" (1935) New York Times	1935 Nov
b. 4, f. 141	One Hundred Years (1936)	1936-1937
b. 4, f. 142	One Hundred Years (1936)	1939, 1944–1948, 1952, 1955, n.d.
b. 4, f. 143	WTL CI: T L LA : / D .: / W(4000)	1020
	"The Japan-China Tragedy and America's Relation to It" (1938)	1938
b. 4, f. 144	"Why Increased Armament?" (1940)	1940

Correspondence Re: Publications (continued)

b. 4, f. 146	"I Believe in the Future" Guideposts, Presbyterian Tribune (1951)	1951-1952
b. 4, f. 147	"Missionaries in China" (1951)	1951
b. 4, f. 148	"A Christmas Benediction" Presbyterian Tribune (1953)	1953-1954
b. 4, f. 149	Memoirs of a Centenarian (1957)	1957 Nov
b. 4, f. 150	Memoirs of a Centenarian (1957)	1957 Dec
b. 4, f. 151	Memoirs of a Centenarian (1957)	1958
b. 4, f. 152	Memoirs of a Centenarian (1957)	1959, 1961, n.d.
b. 4, f. 153	Miscellaneous	1900-1917
b. 4, f. 154	Miscellaneous	1921-1940, 1950-1958, n.d.
Corr	respondence Re: Missions	
b. 5, f. 155	Africa	1906, 1908
b. 5, f. 156	China	1903, 1906-1908
b. 5, f. 157	China	1909
b. 5, f. 158	China	1913-1914, 1916, 1920-1923, 1946
b. 5, f. 159	China	1901
b. 5, f. 160	Colombia	1914, 1916, 1921
b. 5, f. 161	India	1902
b. 5, f. 162	Japan	1909-1910, 1924, 1926-1928
b. 5 , f. 163	Korea	1903–1909, 1915–1929,1945, 1952–1953, n.d.
b. 5, f. 164	Laos	1901, 1908
b. 5, f. 165	Manchuria	1909, 1927-1928
b. 5, f. 166	Philippine Islands	1905-1923, 1927
b. 5, f. 167	Thailand (Siam)	1902-1932
b. 5, f. 168	Syria	1902
b. 5, f. 169	Syria	1907-1908, 1936
b. 5, f. 170	Other countries - "all the Missions"	1902, 1907, 1911, 1925, 1928

Correspondence Re: Anniversaries

Correspondence Re: Anniversaries (continued)

25 Years with the Presbyterian Board of Foreign Missions

b. 6 , f. 171	A-B	1920
b. 6, f. 172	C-F	1920
b. 6, f. 173	G-H	1920
b. 6, f. 174	J-K	1920
b. 6, f. 175	L-M	1920
b. 6, f. 176	N-P	1920
b. 6, f. 177	R	1920
b. 6, f. 178	S-T	1920
b. 6, f. 179	V-Z	1920
	50th Wedding	
b. 6, f. 180	A-E	1933
b. 6, f. 181	F-M	1933
b. 6, f. 182	P-W	1933
b. 6, f. 183	Telegrams	1933
	60th Wedding	
b. 6, f. 184	B-D	1943
b. 6, f. 185	E-H	1943
b. 6, f. 186	J-M	1943
b. 6, f. 187	N-W	1943
b. 6, f. 188	50 years with the Presbyterian Board of Foreign Missions	1946
b. 7, f. 189	70th Birthday: C-W	1926
b. 7, f. 190	75th Birthday: C-W	1931
b. 7 , f. 191	77th Birthday: Wise, Stephen	1933
	80th Birthday	
b. 7, f. 192	A-L	1936
b. 7, f. 193	M-X	1936
b. 7 , f. 194	86th Birthday: Gamewell, Frank	1942
	87th Birthday: Speer-Wise	1943
	90th Birthday	

Correspondence Re: Anniversaries > 90th Birthday (continued)

b. 7 , f. 195	A-L	1946
b. 7, f. 196	M-W	1946
b. 7, f. 197	Telegrams	1946
b. 7, f. 198	91st Birthday: A-W	1947
b. 7, f. 198	94th Birthday: Abbott	1950
b. 7, f. 199	95th Birthday: B-V	1951
b. 7, f. 200	96th Birthday: F-S	1952
b. 7, f. 201	97th Birthday: Ahrens	1953
b. 7, f. 201	98th Birthday: A-S	1954
	99th Birthday	
b. 7, f. 202	A-W	1955
b. 7, f. 203	Telegrams	1955
	100th Birthday	
b. 7, f. 204	A-G	1956
b. 7, f. 205	H-P	1956
b. 7, f. 206	R-W	1956
b. 7, f. 207	Telegrams	1956
b. 7, f. 208	Bound volume of letters from the Church Peace Union and the World Alliance for Friendship through Religion	1956
	101st Birthday	
b. 7, f. 209	B-W	1957
b. 7, f. 210	Telegrams	1957
	102nd Birthday	
b. 7 , f. 211	A-J	1958
b. 7 , f. 212	K-Y	1958
	103rd Birthday	
b. 8, f. 213	B-J	1959
b. 8, f. 214	L-W	1959
b. 8, f. 215	Telegrams	1959
	104th Birthday	
b. 8, f. 216	A-W	1960

Correspondence Re: Anniversaries > 104th Birthday (continued)

b. 8, f. 217	Telegrams	1960
	105th Birthday	
b. 8, f. 218	B-W	1961
b. 8, f. 219	Telegrams	1961
	106th Birthday	
b. 8, f. 220	A-E	1962
b. 8, f. 221	F-O	1962
b. 8, f. 222	P-W	1962
b. 8, f. 223	Telegrams	1962
b. 8, f. 224	Undated birthday greetings	n.d.
C	orrespondence Re: Retirement	
b. 9, f. 225	A-B	1929
b. 9, f. 226	C-D	1929
b. 9, f. 227	E-F	1929
b. 9, f. 228	G-H	1929
b. 9, f. 229	L	1929
b. 9, f. 230	M	1929
b. 9, f. 231	N-R	1929
b. 9, f. 232	S-W	1929
b. 9, f. 233	Bound volume of letters from members of the Chosen Mission, Korea	
C	orrespondence Re: Illness and Sympathy	
	Operation	
b. 10, f. 234	B-W	1922
b. 10, f. 235	McDowell, Ruland, Wise	1941
	Death of Arthur J. Brown	
b. 10, f. 236	A-K	1963
b. 10, f. 237	L-P	1963
b. 10, f. 238	R-W, no surname	1963
b. 10, f. 239	Telegrams	1963
b. 10, f. 240	Death of Arthur J. Brown, Jr.: B-S	1959

Correspondence Re: Illness and Sympathy (continued)

b. 10, f. 241	Death of Elliott W. Brown: A-R	1941
	Death of Jennie E. Brown	
b. 10, f. 242	A-K	1945
b. 10, f. 243	M-Z	1945
b. 10, f. 244	Telegrams	1945

Series II: Diaries and enclosures, 1901-1902, 1909

This section is composed of two parts. The seventeen volumes of Arthur J. Brown's 1901-1902 diary are arranged in chronological order. Enclosures from the volumes are located in separate folders immediately following the text. (e.g., "Book XI, Text", "Book XI, Enclosures") The six volumes of Arthur J. Brown's 1909 diary and the enclosures are arranged in the same manner as the above.

b. 11, f. 1	Book I, Text: New York, U.S.A Tokyo, Japan	1901 Feb 11-1901 Apr 8
b. 11, f. 2	Book I, Enclosures: Clipping - pp 64-65	
b. 11, f. 3	Book II, Text: Tokyo, Japan - Kom Dong, Korea	1901 Apr 8-1901 May 2
b. 11, f. 4	Book II, Enclosures: Note from J.D. Davis - p. 42	
b. 11 , f. 5	Book III, Text: Kum Dong, Korea - Wei Hien, China	1901 May 1-1901 May 27
b. 11, f. 6	Book IV, Text: Wei Hein, China - T'ai Shan, "the sacred mountain of China"	1901 May 28-1901 Jun 12
b. 11, f. 7	Book IV, Enclosures: Clipping p. 134, Clipping and Pamphlet p. 174	
b. 11 , f. 8	Book V, Text: T'ai Shan, "the sacred mountain of China" Pao-ting-fu, China	1901 Jun 13-1901 Jul 5
b. 11, f. 9	Book VI, Cover and Text: Beijing (Peking), China	1901 Jul 9-18
b. 11 , f. 10	Book VI, Enclosures: Extract of "Eleventh Annual Report of Peking University" re: indemnity - p. 16	
b. 11, f. 11	Book VII, Text: Chefoo, China - Tsinglan, China	1901 Jul 19-1901 Aug 11
b. 11, f. 12	Book VII, Enclosures: Clipping	
b. 11, f. 13	Book VII, Enclosures: Maps of Shandong (Shantung) Province 1) route suggested to Brown by F.H. Chalfant 2) locations of Protestant missions	
b. 11, f. 13	1) route suggested to Brown by F.H. Chalfant	
b. 11, f. 13 b. 11, f. 14	route suggested to Brown by F.H. Chalfant locations of Protestant missions	1901 August 13-1901 September 15
	1) route suggested to Brown by F.H. Chalfant 2) locations of Protestant missions 3) "Mail Routes of Am. Pres. Miss. Service"	13-1901
b. 11, f. 14	1) route suggested to Brown by F.H. Chalfant 2) locations of Protestant missions 3) "Mail Routes of Am. Pres. Miss. Service" Book VIII, Text: Tsinglan, China - Guangzhou (Canton), China Book VIII, Enclosures: Clipping p. 75, Program - p. 86, Clipping re: McKinley	13-1901

b. 12, f. 18	Is Book X, Text: Manila, Philippine Islands - Bangkok, Thailand (Siam)	1901 Oct 10-1901 Nov 8
b. 12, f. 19	Book X, Enclosures: Clippings re: Reception for Mr. and Mrs. Brown p. 15, Clippings re: typhoon - p. 39	
b. 12, f. 20	Book XI, Text: Bangkok, Thailand (Siam) Proa, Laos	1901 Nov 8-1901 Nov 29
b. 12, f. 21	Book XI, Enclosures: Note re: Book XI - pp. 107-108, Receipt from cook, in Thai (Siamese) - p. 158, "Memo of Declaration" - p. 195	
b. 12, f. 22	Book XII, Text: Pre, Laos - Chiang Mai, Thailand (Chieng Mai, Laos)	1901 November 30-1901 December 18
b. 12, f. 23	Book XII, Enclosures: Translation of letter re: Suspected adultery case - p. 9	
b. 12, f. 24	Book XIII, Text: Chiang Mai, Thailand (Chieng Mai, Laos) - Bangkok, Thailand (Siam)	1901 December 18 - 1902 January 15
b. 12, f. 25	Book XIII, Enclosures: Letter from Laos Mission to Board p. 23, Siamese postage receipt p. 81, "Press" material - p. 129	
b. 12, f. 26	Book XIV, Text: Bangkok, Thailand (Siam) - Lucknow, India	1902 Jan 15-1902 Feb 14
b. 12, f. 27	Book XIV, Enclosures: Clipping p. 68, Material re: Rangoon Baptist College - p. 71, Receipt - p. 111, pamphlet - p. 145, Clipping - p. 145	
b. 12, f. 28	Book XV, Text: Saharanpur, India - Aden, Arabia	1902 Feb 15-1902 Mar 7
b. 12, f. 29	Book XV, Enclosures: Clippings opp. p. 1, p. 4k, p. 46, p. 62, p. 132	
b. 12, f. 30	Book XVI, Text: Aden, Arabia - Jaffa, Palestine	1902 Mar 8-1902 Apr 7
b. 12, f. 31	Book XVI, Enclosures: Clippings pp. 4-5, p. 12, p. 133, Cover of a Menu - p. 172	
b. 12, f. 32	Book XVII, Text: Beirut, Syria - New York	1902 Apr 7-1902 May 17
b. 12, f. 33	Book XXII, Enclosures: Note re: Beirut Conference - pp. 80-81	
b. 13, f. 34	Book I, Text: New York, U.S.A Tokyo, Japan	1909 Jul 27-1909 Aug 30
b. 13, f. 35	Book II, Text: Tokyo, Japan - Seoul, Korea	1909 Aug 31-1909 Sep 15
b. 13, f. 36	Book II, Enclosures: Three calling cards -1909 Sep 9-10	
b. 13, f. 37	Book III, Text: Seoul, Korea - Lüshunkou, Manchuria (Port Arthur, Japan)	1909 September 15 - 1909 October 6
b. 13, f. 38	Book III, Enclosures: List 1909 Sep 30, Korean railroad time table - 1909 Oct 1	

b. 13, f. 39	Book IV, Text: Lüshunkou, Manchuria (Port Arthur, Japan) - Nanjing (Nanking), China	1909 October 6 - 1909 October 24
b. 13, f. 40	Book IV, Enclosures: Calling card, Memorial	1909 Oct 6-1909 Oct 17
	Train schedule, Editorial, Clipping	1909 Oct 20-21
b. 13, f. 41	Book V, Text: Nanking, China - Chefoo, China	1909 Oct 25-1909 Nov 18
b. 13, f. 42	Book VI, Text: Chefoo, China - New York, U.S.A.	1909 Nov 18-1909 Dec 21
b. 13, f. 43	Miscellaneous enclosure	

Series III: Writings, 1890-1962

The material in this series is contained in three boxes. The contents of Box 14 are organized alphabetically according to form (e.g., addresses, articles, etc.). The material within each folder is arranged chronologically. Box 15 contains the edited draft of Arthur J. Brown's autobiography, *Memoirs of a Centenarian*, arranged according to chapter. The unedited draft of the work is located in Box 16, also arranged according to chapter.

b. 14, f. 1	Addresses by Dr. Brown: to the "General Assembly of 1899", at the close of New York Ecumenical Conference in Carnegie Hall, to the "General Assembly of 1906" to the "Sons of the Revolution"	1899, 1900, 1906, 1926
b. 14, f. 2	Addresses Re: Birthdays	1955-1962
b. 14, f. 3	Address by William N. Wysham Re: Memoirs of A Centenarian, Remarks by Arthur J. Brown Re: Who's Who in America	1957, 1960
b. 14, f. 4	Addresses Welcoming Dr. Brown to China and Syria	1901, 1902
b. 14, f. 5	Articles: "The Tragedy of The North Pacific Coast", no title	circa 1890, circa 1899
	A Reading Journey Through Korea	1905
b. 14, f. 6	Article: "Sir Robert Hart, 'The Wizard Of The East'"	circa 1905
b. 14, f. 7	Articles: "The Union Of Churches", "Six Reasons Why A Progressive Republican Will Vote For Wilson"	c. 1915, 1916
b. 14, f. 8	Articles: "The Immigration Bill", no title	1924, circa 1957
b. 14, f. 9	Article: Re: Arthur J. Brown, printed in "The Phi Gamma Delta"	1961
b. 14, f. 10	Essay: "The Fallen Premier" - Wabash College, Baldwin First Prize Oration	1880
b. 14 , f. 11	Poems	1930-1933, 1952, 1958-1962
b. 14, f. 12	Prayers	1947, 1951-1958
b. 14, f. 13	Prayers	1960-1969, n.d.
b. 14 , f. 14	Prayers: Original form - for "Laymen's National Committee"	c. 1957
b. 14, f. 15	Tribute: "The Death of John R. Mott" presented to The Church Peace Union	1955
b. 14 , f. 16	"Toasts" Re: Birthdays	1959, 1960
b. 14, f. 17	Miscellaneous, including "Notes used in speeches"	1906, 1916, 1925, 1930, 1932, 1955– 1957, n.d.
	Memoirs of a Centenarian, edited draft	
b. 14, f. 18	Foreword, Chapter I	
b. 14, f. 19	Chapter II	
b. 14, f. 20	Chapter III	

Memoirs of a Centenarian, edited draft (continued)

b. 14, f. 21	Chapter IV
b. 14, f. 22	Chapter V
b. 14, f. 23	Chapter VI
b. 14, f. 24	Chapter VII
b. 14, f. 25	Chapter VIII
b. 14, f. 26	Chapter IX: "Some Crowned and Uncrowned Heads"
b. 14, f. 27	Chapter X: "Do Armaments Prevent War?"
b. 14, f. 28	Chapter XI: "The Korea War And Its Threat To World Peace" - copy 1, part 1
b. 14, f. 25	Chapter XI: "The Korea War And Its Threat To World Peace" - copy 1, part 2
b. 14, f. 30	Chapter XI: "The Korea War And Its Threat To World Peace" - copies 2, 3
b. 14, f. 31	Chapter XII: "Religious Faith and Experience - 1 The Bible, Sin, Man and God"
b. 14, f. 32	Chapter XII: "Religious Faith and Experience - 2 The Basis of Our Faith"
b. 14, f. 33	Chapter XII: "Religious Faith and Experience - 3 Immortality"
b. 14, f. 34	Chapter XIII: "Some Crowned and Uncrowned Heads I Have Known"
b. 14, f. 35	Chapter XIV: "Retirement and Subsequent Activities"
b. 14, f. 36	Chapter XIV: "Change Brings Hope"
b. 15, f. 37	Unnumbered chapter (XV?)
b. 15, f. 38	Chapters I, XVI
b. 15, f. 39	Chapter XVIII
b. 15, f. 40	Fragment, Note Re: Memoirs written by Dr. Brown
Mer	moirs of a Centenarian, unedited draft
b. 16, f. 41	Title Page, Foreword, Table of Contents, Chapter I
b. 16, f. 42	Chapter I, pages 10-11, 1-8, 13-15
b. 16, f. 43	Chapter II
b. 16, f. 44	Chapter III
b. 16, f. 45	Chapter IV
b. 16, f. 46	Chapter V
b. 16, f. 47	Chapter VI
b. 16, f. 48	Chapter VII
b. 16, f. 49	Chapter VIII

Memoirs of a Centenarian, unedited draft (continued)

b. 16, f. 50	Chapter IX
b. 16, f. 51	Chapter X
b. 16, f. 52	Chapter XI
b. 16, f. 53	Chapter XII
b. 16, f. 54	Chapter XIII, copy 1
b. 16, f. 55	Chapter XIII, copy 2
b. 16, f. 56	Chapter XIV
b. 16, f. 57	Chapter XV
b. 16, f. 58	Chapter XVI
b. 16, f. 59	Chapter XVII: "Some Observations on Democracy"
b. 16, f. 60	Chapter XVII: "Religious Experience - A Quest For Certainty"
b. 16 , f. 61	Chapter XVIII, one page
b. 16, f. 62	Chapter XVIII (one letter included)
b. 16, f. 63	Chapter XIX: "Religious Experience", two pages
b. 16, f. 64	Chapter XIX: "Religious Faith - A Quest for Certainty"
b. 16, f. 65	Chapter XX
b. 16, f. 66	Chapter XXI
b. 16, f. 67	Chapter XXII

Series IV: Personal items and memorabilia, 1894-1962

This section contains a variety of material organized alphabetically according to form. (e.g., instructions, invitations, etc.)

Photographs, which comprise the bulk of the series, are located after the other material. Photographs of foreign countries are arranged alphabetically according to the name of the country. They are followed by personal photographs and one tape recording.

b. 17, f. 1	Biographical Information re: Brown Family, Grave of Edwin T. Brown	
b. 17, f. 2	Biographical Information re: Marsh Family (including 2 letters)	
b. 17, f. 3	Biographical Information re: Thomas Family (including 1 letter)	
b. 17, f. 4	Calling Cards	
b. 17, f. 5	Calling Cards, including that of Yuan Shih-kai (in Chinese, with translations)	
ŕ	Certificates and Credentials See also: Oversize Material - Degrees and Certificates	
	Certificate: from Greek Government - Royal Order of George the First (with correspondence)	
	Certificate: from Siamese Government - Order of the White Elephant (with correspondence)	
	College Commencement Programs Re: Conferring of Honorary Degrees to Dr. Brown	
b. 17, f. 10	Copy of 1791 Will of William B. Blackmore	
	Instructions Re: Funeral Arrangements for Dr. Brown; Printed Acknowledgement Re: Death of Jennie Brown	
b. 17, f. 12	Invitations, Menu	1899-1902
b. 17, f. 13	Invitations, Menu	1906
b. 17, f. 14	Invitations, Menus, Guest Lists, Etc.	1909-1936
b. 17, f. 15	Invitations, Menus, Guest Lists, Etc.	1944, 1955-1960
b. 17, f. 16	Invitations, Programs, Guest Lists, Etc.	1961, 1962, n.d.
	Letters of introduction from: William McKinley, John Hay, Phelps Dodge, John Fowler, Samuel B. Capen, John W. Foster	
	Letters of introduction: response to a letter of John Fowler by an unknown Chinese official	
	Maps: Petersburg, Virginia, "Part of Shantung showing F.H. Chalfant's Itineraries 1897"	
b. 17, f. 20	Note from Thomas Royal, with autograph of Horatius Bonor	1894

b. 17, f. 22	Organizational Letterheads
b. 17, f. 23	Passport from Manila, Philippine Islands
	See also: Oversize Materials - Travel Documents
b. 17, f. 24	Receipt from Trans-Siberian Railroad 1909
b. 17, f. 25	Miscellaneous including: Memoirs of a Centenarian material, Sacred Herb from Grave of Confucius (1901), etc.
b. 17, f. 26	Miscellaneous
	Photographs
b. 18, f. 27	Arabia
b. 18, f. 28	Myanmar (Burma)
b. 18, f. 29	China
b. 18, f. 30	China
b. 18, f. 31	China
b. 18, f. 32	China
b. 18, f. 33	China
b. 18, f. 34	Egypt
b. 18, f. 35	India
b. 18, f. 36	Japan
b. 18, f. 37	Korea
	Includes photographs of Phelps Dodge
b. 19, f. 38	Malaysia (Singapore)
b. 19, f. 39	Palestine
b. 19, f. 40	Philippines
b. 19, f. 41	Thailand (Siam)
b. 19, f. 42	Thailand (Siam)
b. 19, f. 43	Thailand (Siam)
b. 19, f. 44	Sweden
b. 19, f. 45	Syria/Lebanon
b. 19, f. 46	"Our visit to Budapest" (photo album)
b. 19, f. 47	Enclosures from the photo album "Our visit to Budapest"
b. 19, f. 48	Countries including Austria, Vietnam (Indochina), Turkey, etc.

Photographs (continued)

b. 19, f. 49	Postcards from England, Sweden, Turkey	
b. 19, f. 50	Group Photos from European Conferences	
b. 19, f. 51	Robert E. Speer, Nicholas de Hortley, Two French Army Chaplains, Stephen (Archbishop)	
b. 19, f. 52	Tintype of Edwin T. Brown in Civil War Uniform	
b. 19, f. 53	Arthur J. Brown	1880-1906
b. 19, f. 54	Arthur J. Brown	1925-1937, 1949
b. 19, f. 55	Arthur J. Brown	1955-1959
b. 19, f. 56	Arthur J. Brown	1960-1962
b. 19, f. 57	Arthur J. Brown	undated
b. 19 , f. 58	Tape Recording of Dr. Brown on his 105th Birthday	

Series V: Printed material, 1884-1963

All the material in this series is arranged in chronological order.

The final two folders of the section "Magazine and Newspaper Clippings" contain book reviews written by Arthur J. Brown for *The Interior*, circa 1885 to 1887. These clippings are arranged alphabetically according to the title of the book being reviewed. Material in the section "Re: Publications" is arranged according to the first publication date of each work. On the folder heading, this date appears in parenthesis next to the title. (e.g., *New Forces in Old China* (1904)). Material within each folder is arranged chronologically.

Magazine and		

b. 20 , f. 1-30	Magazine and Newspaper Clippings	1884-1919
b. 21, f. 31-59	Magazine and Newspaper Clippings	1920-1963, n.d.
	Book reviews written by Arthur J. Brown for The Interior	
b. 21, f. 60	А-Н	circa 1885-circa 1887
b. 21, f. 61	I-W	circa 1885-circa 1887
b. 22, f. 62-73	Minutes and Reports	1890-1963
b. 22, f. 74-85	Pamphlets and Notices	1891-1962
b. 23, f. 86-90	Pamphlets: Addresses	1894-1956
b. 23, f. 91	Pamphlets: Sermons	1891, 1911, 1925, 1957
	Re: Publications	
b. 23, f. 92	Re: The New Era in the Philippines (1903)	1903
b. 23, f. 93	Re: The New Era in the Philippines (1903)	1904, n.d.
b. 23, f. 94	Re: New Forces in Old China (1904)	1904-1905 Jan
b. 23, f. 95	Re: New Forces in Old China (1904)	1905 Feb-1906, n.d.
b. 23, f. 96	Re: The Foreign Missionary (1907)	1907–1908, c. 1930, 1932, n.d.
b. 23, f. 97	Re: <i>The Foreign Missionary</i> (1907): "Le Missionaire Et Son Oeuvre" from <i>Le Chretian Belge</i> (with translation)	1911 Feb 4
b. 23, f. 98	Re: The Nearer and Farther East (1908)	1908
b. 23, f. 99	Re: The Why and How of Foreign Missions (1908)	1908–1910, 1921, 1935, n.d.
b. 23, f. 100	Re The Chinese Revolution (1912) .	1912 May-Jul
b. 23, f. 101	Re: The Chinese Revolution (1912)	1912 Aug-Nov, n.d.

Re: Publications (continued)

b. 23, f. 102	Re: Rising Churches in Non-Christian Lands (1915)	1915
b. 23, f. 103	Re: Unity and Missions (1915)	1915-1916, n.d.
b. 23, f. 104	Re: Russia in Transformation (1917)	1917-1919, n.d.
b. 23, f. 105	Re: The Mastery of the Far East (1919)	1919 Apr-Jul
b. 23, f. 106	Re: The Mastery of the Far East (1919)	1919 Aug-1920, n.d.
b. 23, f. 107	Re: The Expectation of Siam (1925)	1925
b. 23, f. 108	Re: Japan in the World of Today (1928)	1928
b. 23, f. 109	Re: One Hundred Years (1936)	1937, n.d.
b. 23, f. 110	Re: Memoirs of a Centenarian (1957)	1958, n.d.
b. 23, f. 111	Church Bulletins and Newsletters	1903-1947
b. 23, f. 112	Church Bulletins and Newsletters	1965, n.d.
b. 24, f. 113	Bound Material: Bible Belonging to Arthur J. Brown, with enclosures	
b. 24, f. 114	Bound Material: Philips' Authentic Map of Asia	
b. 24, f. 115	Bound Material: Map of the Far East	circa 1907

Series VI: Restricted Circulation and Oversize Material

Restricted circulation material contains original copies of frail materials. Use copies are available in the previous series. The material is arranged in series order, identical to the non-restricted materials

Restricted circulation

Restricted circulation material contains original copies of frail materials. Use copies are available in the previous series. The material is arranged in series order, identical to the non-restricted materials.

b. 25, f. 1	Correspondence	1907, 1922, 1936, 1955, 1956, 1959
b. 25, f. 2	Writings	1930
	Printed material	
b. 25, f. 3-16	Magazine and newspaper clippings	1884-1963, n.d.
b. 25, f. 17	Minutes and reports	1926, 1929
b. 25, f. 18	Re: publications	1903, 1907, 1908, 1911
b. 25, f. 19	Re: publications	1912
b. 25, f. 20	Re: publications	1915, 1932
Ov	ersize Material	
	Degrees and Certificates	
b. OV1	Carroll College	1916
b. OV1	Lake Forest College	1891
b. OV1	Lane Theological Seminary	1883
b. OV1	Wabash College	1880, 1886
b. OV1	Yale University	1913
b. OV1	"Oregon National Guardappointed and constitutedCaptain and Chaplain of the 1st Regiment of Infantry"	1889
b. OV1	Wabash College - Alumni Award of Merit	1951
b. OV1	Hall of Fame for Great Americans	1960
	Photographs	
b. OV1	"Testimonial Dinnertendered by The American Committee on Religious Rights and Minorities and The Church Peace Union"	1936
b. OV1	"Delegates to the annual meeting of the North American Section of the World Alliance of Presbyterian and Reformed Churches" with President Coolidge in front of the White House	1936
	Total December	

Travel Documents

Oversize Material > Travel Documents (continued)

b. OV1	Issued at "Tokio" (Tokyo), Japan	1901
b. OV1	Issued at Chefoo, China	1901
b. OV1	Issued at Cairo, Egypt	1902
b. OV1	Issued at Egypt with fragment	1902?
b. OV1	Issued at Constantinople	1902
b. OV1	Issued at Washington	1909
b. OV1	Issued at Korea [missing]	n.d.
b. OV1	Issued at Thailand (Siam)	n.d.
Oth	ner	
b. OV1	Korean Alphabet	
b. OV1	Life and Work - Daily Bulletin of Universal Christian Conference at	1925, Aug 20
	Stockholm - containing address given by Arthur J. Brown	

Selected Search Terms

The following terms have been used to index the description of this collection in the Library's online catalog. They are grouped by name of person or organization, by subject or location, and by occupation and listed alphabetically therein.

Subjects

Church history
Clergy
Ecumenical movement
Missionaries
Missions
Missions -- China
Presbyterian Church
Russo-Japanese War, 1904-1905

Geographic Names

China -- History China -- History -- Boxer Rebellion, 1899-1901

Occupations

Authors

Names

Brown, Arthur Judson, 1856-1963 Hart, Robert, 1835-1911 Hoover, Herbert, 1874-1964 Mott, John R. (John Raleigh), 1865-1955 Roosevelt, Theodore, 1858-1919 Speer, Robert E. (Robert Elliott), 1867-1947 Taft, William H. (William Howard), 1857-1930 Yuan, Shikai, 1859-1916

Corporate Bodies

Presbyterian Church in the U.S.A. Board of Foreign Missions Universal Christian conference on life and work